September 1, 2020 at 5:00 p.m.

Bedford Room

Call to Order

Approval of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes from the last meeting

Public Comments

Board Chair Report

Director’'s Report:

Collection development/purchasing process discussion
Policies and Procedures — update from August meeting
Personnel/VOSH — update from August meeting
Buildings

Technology

September is Library Card Signup Month

FY21 Operating Budget updates — action item

Financials

New Business

Adjournment



Bedford Public Library System
Board of Trustees meeting Minutes
Bedford Central Library
August 4, 2020

Board members present: Natalie Martin, Debbie Bahouth, Randy Cox, Mary Jo Krufka, Anna Stevens and
Hope Cupit.

Staff present: Jenny Novalis, Library Director
Ms. Krufka called the meeting to order at 5:01pm.

Ms. Krufka asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mrs. Cupit mctioned to approve the agenda, Mrs.
Martin seconded, all agreed.

Ms. Krufka asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the previous meeting. Mrs. Martin
motioned to approve the minutes, Mrs. Stevens seconded, all agreed.

No public comments.
Directors Report:

The proposed changes to the holiday policy were discussed, and there were no public comments on any
of the policy changes presented at the previous meeting. Mrs. Novalis noted that the current draft of
the holiday policy, as distributed in the board packet, is the most recent. Changes include adding 2
additional holiday days and making all regular employees eligible for holiday pay. Ms. Krufka asked for
a motion to approve the holiday policy with changes. Mrs. Cupit motioned, Mrs. Stevens seconded, all
agreed. Proposed changes to the circulation policy were discussed. Mrs. Novalis stated that both
changes involve easing some restrictions due to the current ecanomic state, increasing the amount of
money owed before blocking access and sending to our debt collection vendor. Ms. Krufka asked for a
motion to approve changes to the circulation policy, as presented. Myrs. Martin motioned to approve
the revisions to the circulation policy, Mrs. Bahouth seconded, all agreed. Ms. Krufka asked for a motion
to approve adding the “Infectious pandemic - leveis of emergency chart for safe buildings” section to the
emergency policy. Mrs. Bahouth motioned to add the document, Mr. Cox seconded, all agreed,

Mrs. Novalis talked briefly about the IMLS / OCLC / Battelle materials safety project, called REALM or
REopening Archives, Libraries and Museums. The test 1 results and test 2 results have been published
and the summary reports were handed out. The Board discussed how the library’s current returned
materials quarantine process fits with the most recent findings about how long the SARS CeV-2 virus
survives on common library materials. Mrs. Movalis noted that the first result set indicated it is active on
the DVD cases, and hardback book covers for only 1 day after exposure; but up to 3 days on the Mylar
cavered book covers, paperback book covers and pages inside of a closed book. Currently the BPLS
quarantines all materials for a minimum of 3 days anyway. The results of test 2 present a preblem for
the magazines and children’s board books though. Those tests indicate the virus is still active on these
surfaces up to 4 days after exposure. The Board discussed how to move forward with our lending
policies knewing this new information. Several scenarios were discussed but it was agreed to allow only
in-house use of the magazines (non-circulating status) and to discard the older issues unless there is
sufficient storage space 1o house them, off the public floor, Board books can be wiped off with alcohol



wipes manually after the 3 day quarantine period. Results for test 3.should be available in mid-August
and test 4 has been announced. Test 4 will lock at similar book materials as test 1, but the items will be
stacked, instead of laid cut alone. Mrs. Novalis wiil keep the Board updated.

Mrs. Novalis presented the FY20 library stats and noted that everything from physical book checkouts,
to computer usage, to programming attendance was down from last year, due to the time we were
closed and the safety precautions taken once we re-opened. The only stat that was higher than last
year, was the number of electronic books/audiobocks and such that checked out, that figure was 130%
of FY19.

Staff committee work on the 20-25 long range plan was put on hold after the state of emergency was
declared but it will be continuing now. Updated timeframe puts a final plan, up for Board vote at the
January 2021 meeting. Board recommendations will be discussed at the October 2020 meeting.

Mrs. Novalis reported that all the staff vacancies except for one page position at Bedford Central, have
been filled. Administration is also creating a handbook for personnel questions and situations related to
COVID-19 . The handbook would caver “what to do if ...” type of situations involving staff safety issues,
zs well as, how to handle difficult staff-patron interactions. To this effect, Library Administration is
working through the ‘nine steps to achieve compliance’ document put out by the VA Occupational
Safety and Health Program for the new Emergency Temporary Standard for the COVID-19 Pandemic, It
is our understanding that we have 30 days from its publication on july 27 to reach compliance. A
discussion about the ETS and where library employees fit in the classification process put forth in the
standard ensued. Mrs. Novalis reported that the majerity of other public libraries in VA are classifying
their employees as Lower Risk and that several of the compliance steps have aiready been untaken in
our workplaces. Mrs. Novalis wili keep the Board informed.

The Library received reimbursement of Erate eligible expenses from the lanuary 2020-June 2020
monthly internet Shentel bills. The deposit amount was $20,314.82. The Board discussed upcoming
priorities for vehicles, buildings and technoiogy needs. Ms. Krufka asked for a motion to move the
$20,314.82 into the facilities maintenance fund, Mrs. Bahouth motioned, Mrs. Martin seconded, all
agreed. Mrs. Novalis noted that due to the timing of this meeting, the end of July financial reports were
unavailable, but would be presented at the next meeting.

Ms. Krufka asked for a motion to adjourn. Mrs. Bahouth motioned, Mr. Cox seconded, all agreed. The
meeting adjourned at 6:25pm



Directors Report
September 1, 2020 at 5:00 p.m.

Bedford Room
Collection development/purchasing process discussion

Policies and Procedures —
e (update from August meeting) REALM project (Reopening Archives, Libraries
and Museums) update. Test 3 results were published on August 20
o Resource page is here: https://www.webjunction.org/explore-topics/COVID-
19-research-project.html

Personnel — update from August meeting
e Handbook for COVID-19 personnel and safety situations is done. And is being
updated as new CDC and workplace guidelines are released.
e Emergency temporary standard update
o Staff committee is being formed to provide real-time input for safety
measures and to update Library Administration of any new workplace
safety guidelines related to the ETS
e Full text of the standard is available here: https://www.doli.virginia.gov/covid-19-
outreach-education-and-training/

Buildings
e Discussion of workplace/library improvements and retrofits to align with infectious
disease safety measures

Technology
e Rewiring work at the Forest and Big Island Libraries is complete
e Total cost of building upgrades/rewiring (3 year project)
e Benefits of this project (summary)

September is Library Card Signup Month
e Library card signup campaign ideas
¢ Collaboration with BCPS - student card

Budget updates — action item
e Updated personnel amount and library materials income/expense

Financials
e Fund account balances
¢ Income/expense reports from July 2020



REopening
Archives, Libraries,
and Museums

PROJECT

Test 3: Natural attenuation as a decontamination approach for
SARS-CoV-2 on five plastic-based materials

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) and
OCLC are working in partnership with Battelle to distribute science-based information designed to help
reduce the risk of transmission of COVID-19 to staff and visitors who are engaging in the delivery or
use of archive, library, and museum services. This REopening Archives, Libraries, and Museums
(REALM) project is studying how long the SARS CoV-2 virus (the virus that causes COVID-19) survives
on common materials and methods to mitigate exposure.

As part of the project's Phase 1 research, Battelle has conducted three natural attenuation studies to
provide information on how long some commonly handled library materials would need to be
considered for quarantine prior to being put back into use. The results of Test 1 and Test 2 were
released on June 22 and July 20, 2020, respectively; Test 3 began on July 10, 2020. The studies were
conducted by applying the virulent SARS-CoV-2 virus on five materials held at standard room
temperature (68°F to 756°F) and relative humidity conditions (30 to 50 percent). The materials in Test 3
included the five items listed in Table 1.

Table 1. Test 3 items examined.

Item Material type Use
' Talking book, USB cassette* Acryionitrile butadiene styrene Cartridges are used in talking book
(ABS), specific blend readers available through the

National Library Services for the
Blind and Disabled

DVD** Polycarbonate Digital data storage (also includes
CDs). Note: A polypropylene DVD
case was tested in Test 1.

Storage bag (flexible plastic)** Low-density polyethylene (LDPE),  Storage, library and museum kits,

recycling #4 gift shop packaging
Storage container (rigid High-density polyethylene (HDPE), Transporting and storage of items
plastic)** recycling #2
Plexiglass *** Acrylic Display cases, partitions

ltems were provided by the National Library Service for the Blind and Print Disabled, Library of
Congress*; Columbus Metropolitan Library**; and the National Archives and Records Administration***.
Samples from each item were inoculated and placed on top of a stainless steel rack. In contrast to Test
2, these items were not tested in a nested (or stacked) configuration to mimic common operating
procedures.

@ ocLe - vwkany  BATTELLE ccBYNCSA4O 4

R H
ertore or smissions herain



REopening
Archives, Libraries,
and Museums

PROJECT

Results show that after five days of quarantine in an unstacked configuration, the SARS-CoV-2
virus was not detected on the storage bag (flexible plastic) or the DVD. The storage container

(rigid plastic), plexiglass, and the USB cassette all showed detectable virus at five days. Day five
was the final timepoint tested.

Compared to the results of Test 1 and 2, this data suggests that a slightly longer quarantine time for
these types of plastic-based materials may be required to render SARS-CoV-2 undetectable through
natural attenuation alone. Alternatively, based on the materials’ nonporous nature, suitable liquid
disinfection methods may promote a more rapid decontamination than the quarantine method.

Test Methods

The items studied in Test 3 were not sterilized before testing. Battelle propagated the clinical isolate of
the SARS-CoV-2 virus in-house, followed by characterization and testing to establish a certified titer. All
testing was conducted within a biosafety level (BSL)-3 laboratory.

Test coupons (N=5) and blank (N=1), per timepoint, were excised from each of the five library materials
in 1.8 cm x 7.6 cm—sized coupons. Stock SARS-CoV-2 was applied as 10 10-pL droplets (100 uL total)
on each coupon and allowed to dry at ambient laboratory conditions in a Class |l biosafety cabinet
(BSCII), as shown in Figure 1. Once dry, a set of test coupons were collected and processed (T0
samples), and the remainder of test coupons were moved to a Class Ill biosafety cabinet to maintain
the desired ambient environmental conditions of 22 + 2°C and relative humidity (RH) of 40 + 10%.
Actual conditions achieved were 21.9 = 0.61°C and 37.4 + 0.92% RH. All material coupons, after
inoculation and subsequent drying, were placed on top of a stainless steel rack and into the
environmentally controlled chamber for testing.

Figure 1. Inoculation of SARS-CoV-2 onto Test 3 materials (left). After inoculation, the extracted
test coupons were placed inside the exposure chamber to control Temp and RH (right)

@ OCLC - miseititbary  BATTELLE wit CCBY-NC-SA40 2



REopening
Archives, Libraries,
and Museums

PROJECT

At the specified time points, the test coupons were removed from the environmental chamber and
placed in 50-mL conical tubes (Fisher Scientific Cat. No. 14-959-49A, Waltham, MA, USA) and
extracted with 10-mL complete cell culture media (Dulbecco’s Modified Eagle Medium, Corning Cat.
No. 10-010-CV, Corning, NY, USA) supplemented with 2% fetal bovine serum (Gibco Cat. No.
10082147, Carlsbad, CA, USA) and penicillin-streptomycin (Gibco Cat. No. 15140122) agitated on a
platform shaker at 200 rotations per minute for 15 minutes.

During the extraction process, there was a potential for chemicals from the test materials or adhesives
contained within those materials, to leach into the extracted liquid. Those chemicals could have had a
deleterious cytopathic effects (CPE) on the cell culture monolayer. Since cell culture monolayers are
needed for the median tissue culture infectious dose [TCIDso] assay to quantitatively determine
infectious virus, it is important that the extractant does not have components other than the SARS-CoV-
2 that will cause CPE, since this will result in false positives (i.e., presence of infectious virus).

To mitigate the potential for chemically induced CPE, the extracts were transferred to a concentrator
(Spin-X UF Concentrator, Corning Cat. No. CLS431491) and centrifuged until the ~10-mL starting
volume was concentrated to ~ 0.5 mL. Approximately 10 mL of fresh complete cell culture media was
added to the concentrated sample (i.e., extracts) for the purpose of washing and removing any residual
chemicals. The concentrator was centrifuged again and concentrated to ~ 0.5 mL. Media was added to
equilibrate all washed extracts to approximately 2 mL.

The limit of quantitation (LOQ) of this assay is 13.1 TCIDso units. Once below this threshold, the assay
can no longer assign a quantitative value output; however, a qualitative assessment of the presence of
infection can be observed through manual microscopic examination. Therefore, any values below LOQ,
but positive for presence of virus, are assigned a value of 10 (indicating positive) to allow it to be
resolved from 0 (indicating negative) presence of viral infection in the Vero cells.

The test sample extracts were assayed in Vero E6 cells (ATCC CRL-1586, Manassas, VA, USA), and
after a 72-hour incubation at 37°C with 5% CO», the TCIDso assay plates were observed for CPE. The
test matrix covered five time points (T, or day): TO, T2, T3, T4, and T5. As shown in Table 2 and Figure
3, at TO, a 1.2 to 1.5 log reduction (LR) was observed on all materials. Once dry, the rate of attenuation
slowed and by day 5, two materials (the storage bag and DVD) had attenuated below the level of
detection for the assay, meaning no CPE was observable in the undiluted extract placed onto the Vero
cells. Recoverable SARS-CoV-2 were still observable on the USB cassette, the storage container, and
the plexiglass through day 5, although all were below the LOQ.

D ocLc v  BATTELLE ccBYNCSA4D 3

are



REopening
Archives, Libraries,
and Museums

PROJECT

Table 2. Test 3 total logio SARS-CoV-2 recovered at days 0, 2, 3, 4, and 5.

Description Inoculum?!

Talking book, USB cassette 4.70 3.24 1.45 1.12 0.54 0.26
DVD 4.70 3.24 1.28 1.55 1.39 <LOD
Storage bag (flexible plastic) 470 3.47 1.76 1.77 0.52 <LOD
Storage container (rigid plastic) 4.70 3.16 1.26 0.85 0.78 1.04
Plexiglass 4.70 3.24 1.41 1.61 0.52 0.52

1 Total number (logsg) of virus applied to each material
2 Total number (logso) of virus recovered after ~1hr dry period

Test 3 SARS-CoV-2 Natural Attenuation

e Talking Book USB Cassette = DVD Storage Bag Storage Container =====Plexiglass ——L0OQ
6.00 1,000,000
5.00 100,000

4.00 10,000

3.00 1,000

Viable SARS-CoV-2 Log,,
Viable SARS-CoV-2 Raw

2.00 100

1.00 110

0.00 =10
Inoculum 0 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5 Day

Figure 3. Test 3 attenuation of SARS-CoV-2 at days 0, 2, 3, 4, and 5, with + 95% confidence intervals
indicated by the black vertical bars for each test date and item.

(a_) OCLC }i miseursibary  PATTELLE CCBY-NC-SA40 4



90¢'681

st 31 se 323pnq 3unerado Jo no Junoure aaeLa]

"2WIOJoUT ﬁmmn—ﬂm-ﬂmﬂ—m jou

%0°00L  TEELP6'T § FP6'ClOI$

:samypuadxy [ejo,

uawaaoxdwy 2 A31adorg

sadreyD) snonunguo))
sjuowieJ IoJsuei],
srerrayeA 29 sarddng
surexdo1J Areiqry
S[eLIa)elN Areiqry
SIOIAIDG [eNjOeIFUO))
S9IIAIIG [OUUOSID ]

saamyrpuadxy

0} UOISIAI(] SILIRIIT] pUe SJOOYIS Aq pajonisu] %20 GTSV1S G//'S1$
(0T/9 031 61/2) spuny yey-H 0<00-001¥ %C L THOPIS 988'TP1$
%10 0ST'C$ 0ST'C$
%81 00 7<% $90'9¢$
0000T $ OTAd woIy 1240 A11eD) %€0 009°9% acz’'ss$
000°Z pund yijeoH wuos pioypagq 11£0-001%] %68 90€'cL1$ €LE'651S
009 sgupurey Jsa1aju] 1050-001¥ %EVL a89°2/T% 0¥S'£LTS
000c ONUIASL “ISTA 6600-001LY %999 V8 L6 1S 108°C8T’1$
000¢€ Iex)SI3aY - SIS0 PAISA0IY 2600-001F
000¥ s191d0D) - 53500 PaIaA0IRY 1600-001¥
0ov suongeuo( pue SJPLIOWRA ¥200-001LY
- sores €200-001¥
0se adeisog ¢c00-001¥ %0001 TEC'LV6'T  $ PP6'ET6T $
00002 Bunurid sondwiod /5995 xey 1200-001%| %€ 0ST’e8 $ 0ST'sL $
000¢ 994 yodsseq ¥100-001¥ %L°6 90¢'681 $ 8/0°¢81$
0009 s[eLIaje] pagewre(] /1507 ¢100-00Lv 091’6 $
000°4T $ SOUL] pue S99y L100-001¥ %0798 919'699'T  § 9196991 $
ojeuwInsy uondrnsa( dNUIANY BPBYIO LCAd 0cAd

%

-- 198png SuneradQ [ZAg waisAg Areiqry d1iqng piojpag

ONULAIY ejo],
2PYI0
prv Areiqry ayesg
dul 9duURINSUI Yj[eay
AyunoD) projpag

SINUDAJY]




